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I. SCHOOL INFORMATION AND COVER PAGE
Created Thursday, July 31, 2014
Updated Monday, November 03, 2014

Page 1

1. SCHOOL NAME

(Select School name from dropdown menu; BEDS # appears first)

331400860825 BEGINNING WITH CHLDRN CS

2. CHARTER AUTHORIZER

NYCDOE-Authorized Charter School

3. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION

NYC CSD 14

4. SCHOOL INFORMATION
PRIMARY ADDRESS PHONE NUMBER FAX NUMBER EMAIL ADDRESS

11 Bartlett Street
Brooklyn, NY 11206

718-388-8847 718-388-8936

4a. PHONE CONTACT NUMBER FOR AFTER HOURS EMERGENCIES
Contact Name Zoraida Olivo

Title Operations Manager

Emergency Phone Number (###-###-####)

5. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL)

(No response)

6. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER

2001-09-01 00:00:00

7. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR INSTRUCTION

2001-09-01 00:00:00

8. TOTAL NUMBER OF STUDENTS ENROLLED IN 2013-14 (as reported on BEDS Day)

(as reported on BEDS Day)
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344

9. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2013-14

Check all that apply

•  K

•  1

•  2

•  3

•  4

•  5

•  6

•  7

•  8

10. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT WITH A CHARTER OR EDUCATIONAL
MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION?
 

Yes/No Name of CMO/EMO

No
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11. FACILITIES

Will the School maintain or operate multiple sites?

Yes, 2 sites

12. SCHOOL SITES

Please list the sites where the school will operate in 2014-15.

Physical Address Phone
Number

District/CS
D

Grades
Served at Site

School at Full
Capacity at Site

Facilities
Agreement

Site 1 (same as
primary site)

11 Bartlett Street
Brooklyn, NY 11206

718-388-884
7

CSD 14 k-5 Yes DOE space

Site 2 185 Ellery Street
Brooklyn NY 11206

718-384-415
4

CSD 14 6-8 Yes DOE space

12a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1 (same as the primary site).
Name Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address

School Leader Les King

Operational Leader Patrick Kern

Compliance Contact Zoraida Olivo

Complaint Contact Ellen Eagen

12b. Please provide the contact information for Site 2.
Name Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address

School Leader Valerie Davis-Fells

Operational Leader Patrick Kern

Compliance Contact Zoraida Olivo

Complaint Contact Ellen Eagen

13. Are the School sites co-located?

Yes

13a. Please list the terms of your current co-location.
Date School
will leave
current
co-location

Is school working
with NYCDOE to
expand into current
space?

If so, list
year
expansion
will occur.

Is school working
with NYCDOE to
move to separate
space?

If so, list the
proposed space and
year planned for
move

School at
Full
Capacity at
Site

Site 1
(primary
site)

Unknown No Yes We are Requesting
space for2015
school year or
ASAP

Yes
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Site 2 Unknown No Yes We are Requesting
space for2015
school year or
ASAP

Yes
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14. Were there any revisions to the school’s charter during the 2013-2014 school year? (Please
include both those that required authorizer approval and those that did not require authorizer
approval).

No

16. Our signatures below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and
accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, and with all
pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We understand that if any
information in any part of this report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented, that will
constitute grounds for the revocation of our charter. Check YES if you agree and use the mouse
on your PC or the stylist on your mobile device to sign your name).

•  Yes

Signature, Head of Charter School

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

Thank you.
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Appendix A: Progress Toward Goals
Created Friday, August 01, 2014
Updated Friday, November 07, 2014

Page 1

Charter School Name: 331400860825 BEGINNING WITH CHLDRN CS

1. NEW YORK STATE REPORT CARD

Provide a direct URL or web link to the most recent New York State School Report Card for the
charter school (See https://reportcards.nysed.gov/).

(Charter schools completing year one will not yet have a School Report Card or link to one. Please type "URL is not available" in the
space provided).

http://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?instid=800000045185

2. APPENDIX A: PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

2a. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

If the results are not available by August 1st, please list the goals and explain this in the “progress toward goal attainment” column.
This task will reopen for the school to update and finalize by the November 1, 2014 due date.  

2013-14 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals
Academic Student
Performance Goal

Measure Used to Evaluate
Progress

2013-2014 Progress
Toward Attainment

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts to be Taken

Academic
Goal 1

BwCCS students will
become proficient readers
and writers of the English
language.

Measure 1 (Absolute): 
Student performance on the 
New York State Common 
Core English Language 
Arts (NYS ELA) Exams. 
 
Each year, BwCCS 
students in grades 3 
through 8 will exceed the 
New York City average on 
the NYS ELA Exams. 
Only students who have 
been enrolled at BwCCS 
for at least two year will be 
included in this analysis. 
 
 
Measure 2 (Absolute): No 
Child Left Behind 
Outcomes Annual Yearly 
Progress (AYP) 
 
Each year, BwCCS’s 
Aggregate Performance

Measure 1: The goal was 
met in grades 5 (29.6%) 
but not in the other grades. 
Both 7th and 8th grade 
cohorts improved at least 
4.4% from the previous 
year. The 2013-2014, 3rd 
grade out performed 
2012-2013 cohort 3rd 
grade by 6%. 
 
Measure 2: For 2013-2014, 
the school’s PI met its 
AMO. 253 students were 
tested, overall. The school's 
PI was 87, which is greater 
than the required AMO of 
82. 
 
Measure 3: The school's 
collapsed proficiency rate 
was 19% during 
2013-2014. This exceeded 
NYC School Districts 16

This Fall, school leadership 
developed targeted 
interventions in English 
Language Arts for students 
in kindergarten through 8th 
grade. A significant 
amount of students at 
Beginning with Children 
Charter School achieved 
below grade level during 
the 2013-2014 school year 
according to normative 
measures of student 
learning. However, we 
believe that specific 
interventions in literacy can 
have a transformative 
impact on student 
achievement. 
 
The school determined 
supportive interventions 
based on collected student 
data and connected

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/)
http://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?instid=800000045185
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Index (PI) on the NYS 
ELA Exam will meet its 
Annual Measurable 
Objective (AMO) set forth 
in the State’s No Child Left 
Behind (NCLB) 
accountability system. 
 
Under NCLB, the State 
Education Department sets 
an Annual Measurable 
Objective (AMO) to 
determine if schools are 
making satisfactory 
progress towards the goal 
that 100 percent of students 
will be proficient in the 
State’s learning standards 
in ELA by 2013-2014. To 
meet the standard in ELA 
set in the Accountability 
Plan, all tested students 
must have a Performance 
Index (PI) value that equals 
or exceeds that year’s 
AMO in English Language 
Arts. The PI is calculated 
by adding the sum of the 
percent of students at level 
2 and above with the sum 
of the percent of students at 
level 3 and above. 
 
 
 
Measure 3 (Comparative): 
BwCCS student 
proficiency rates on the 
New York State Common 
Core English Language 
Arts Exams. 
 
Each year, the proficiency 
rate on the NYS ELA 
Exams for BwCCS 
students will exceed the 
proficiency rates of 
students from NYC School 
Districts 14, 16, and 32. 
Only students who have 
been enrolled at BwCCS 
for at least two years will 
be included in that analysis. 
 
 
 
Measure 4 (Value Added): 
Increase in student 
proficiency on the New 
York State Common Core

(16.1%) and 32 (15.9%).
However, the school did
not exceed proficiency
rates for NYC School
District 14 (25%). 
 
The school’s proficiency
rates for grade 3 (25%)
exceeds Districts 16 (22%)
and 32 (15.1%). The school
proficiency rates for
Grades 5 (29.6%) and 6
(17.5%) also exceeded
Districts 14, 16, and 32.
Grade 8 (16%) only
exceeded District 16
(12.8%). Other grade
cohorts did not meet or
exceed this standard. 
 
Measure 4: BwCCS met
the required goal for grades
5 and 8. Others grades did
not meet or exceed this
standard.

academic research. In 
English Language Arts 
teachers reviewed 4 sets of 
student achievement data, 
including the New York 
State examinations in ELA, 
iReady diagnostic 
assessments aligned with 
Common Core State 
Standards in ELA, Fountas 
+ Pinnell independent 
reading levels, and 
collected school 
performance data. In 
addition, the lower school 
will measure continued 
student progress, based on 
STEP literacy assessments. 
 
Specific Interventions: 
 
1) A rigorous workshop 
curriculum 
 
The majority of current 
students perform below 
levels of proficiency in 
reading and writing. Our 
current curriculum deepens 
core knowledge and 
increases student 
commitment to reading and 
writing. In the lower 
grades, the ELA 
curriculum is guided by 
Reading Street. Reading 
Street is a comprehensive 
reading and writing 
curriculum, driven by the 
Common Core State 
Standards. In the middle 
grades, the ELA 
curriculum is guided by 
Units of Study, a balanced 
literacy program developed 
by the Teachers College 
Reading and Writing 
Project. 
 
Throughout the school 
year, teachers assess and 
evaluate student learning 
and learning progress 
through baseline 
assessments, including 
iReady, Rally, and STEP. 
Ongoing assessment helps 
teachers revise guided 
learning groups and target 
specific reading or writing
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ELA exams. 
 
If BwCCS does not exceed
the NYC average
proficiency rate on the
NYS Common Core ELA
exams, it will reduce by
one half, the difference
between the NYC
proficiency rate and the
actual BwCCS proficiency
rate on the subsequent
NYS ELA exam for the
same class of students.
Only students who have
been enrolled at BwCCS
for at least two years will
be included in this analysis. 
 

skills. Teachers will also 
work to integrate best 
practices in literacy across 
content areas, including 
Mathematics, Social 
Studies, and Science. A 
consistent emphasis on 
core reading and writing 
skills can improve learning 
acquisition and learning 
transfer. 
 
2) A robust independent 
reading program 
 
Research shows that 
independent reading can 
dramatically improve 
reading engagement, 
reading comprehension, 
and reading fluency. 
(Allington, 2011) (Guthrie 
and Wiegfield, 2000) In 
addition, there is an 
especially strong 
correlation between time 
spent reading and student 
performance in all content 
areas, including students 
achievement on 
standardized achievement 
tests. (TCRWP, 2010) 
(NEA, 2007) Our goal is to 
dramatically increase 
student reading inside and 
outside of school. 
 
This Fall, we implemented 
a comprehensive 
independent reading 
program across the school 
community. Our initiative 
includes consistent 
classroom time dedicated 
to independent reading, as 
well as classroom libraries 
with an abundance of 
books, including high 
interest books at all reading 
levels. During independent 
reading, teachers 
conference individually 
with students to monitor 
and support individual 
learning. In total, our goal 
is to connect students with 
engaging texts, to improve 
student commitment to 
reading and reading 
achievement, to support
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students with targeted 
individual instruction, and 
to increase text complexity 
over time. 
 
3) A positive reading and 
writing culture 
 
Over time, our goal is to 
develop stronger 
connections between 
classroom learning and 
literacy practices at home 
and in the community. We 
will develop and expand 
school initiatives in reading 
and writing to encourage 
parent and community 
participation. Our first 
initiative, #Booklyn, is a 
community campaign to 
raise awareness for our 
reading program. The 
project will provide every 
student with 3 independent 
reading books of their 
choice. We also plan to 
develop additional 
activities and projects, 
including community book 
clubs or community 
writing performances. Our 
initial community book 
club this Winter uses a text 
that is available in both 
English and Spanish for 
our parents. 
 
4) A targeted intervention 
for students approaching 
grade level in ELA 
 
The state establishes 
specific guidelines for 
student proficiency in 
English Language Arts at 
each grade level. Students 
that achieve middle- to 
upper-level 2 scores on the 
standardized exams most 
closely approach 
proficiency. These students 
will regularly attend 
Scholar Weekly Academy, 
an intensive after school 
program on Tuesdays and 
Thursdays to propel them 
forward. 
 
Our goal is to support
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targeted students with a 
consistent and focused 
curriculum. This 
curriculum will enrich and 
support our existing 
curriculum, as well as 
target specific skills that 
promote achievement on 
standardized exams. First, 
an enrichment curriculum 
will promote student 
engagement and fluency in 
literacy. Secondly, a 
proven test preparation 
curriculum will help 
teachers assess and 
improve specific reading 
and writing skills to 
support. 
 
5) An immersive 
intervention for struggling 
students 
 
Students that achieve a 
Level 1 on state 
standardized are 
significantly below grade 
level proficiency. They 
require a comprehensive 
remedy that can quickly 
improve reading 
proficiency. These students 
will receive specific 
directed services during 
school time. In addition, 
students will regularly 
attend Scholar Weekly 
Academy and Saturday 
Academy. 
 
In English Language Arts, 
immersive instruction 
includes directed reading, 
supportive services, and 
targeted reading lessons. In 
the lower and middle 
schools, students will 
receive guided reading 
instruction through Leveled 
Literacy Intervention, or 
LLI, and iReady. LLI is a 
supplementary literacy 
program designed to 
support struggling readers. 
LLI includes staged 
instruction to support 
reading fluency and 
reading comprehension. 
iReady is a research-based
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reading intervention that
targets and strengthens
specific reading skills. 
 
6) Continuous, immersive
professional development
for teachers 
 
A review of research
literature in professional
development explains that
the most effective training
is collaborative,
comprehensive, embedded,
intensive, and ongoing.
(Blank and Alas, 2009)
(Generation Ready, 2010)
We are committed to
developing relevant and
highly-effective
professional development
for our teachers and staff.
This Fall, teachers and staff
completed a
comprehensive survey on
school climate, academic
instruction, and
professional development.
Leadership analyzed the
results from the survey to
address systematic
concerns and design
comprehensive, ongoing
professional development. 
 
In addition to collective
professional development,
the school also provides
continuous supports to
teachers and staff by
department and by grade.
Teachers meet weekly to
plan instruction aligned to
city, state, and national
frameworks. In addition,
leadership meets
individually with each
teacher to develop and
advance specific goals and
objectives for curriculum,
instruction, and student
achievement.

Academic
Goal 2

BwCCS students will
become proficient in the
understanding and
application of
mathematical skills and
concepts.

Measure 1 (Absolute): 
Student performance on the 
New York State Common 
Core Mathematics Exams. 
 
Each year, BwCCS 
students in grades 3 
through 8 will exceed the

Measure 1: 
 
The school met this 
measure for Grade 5 
(40.7% over 38.7%) for 
this past year. Additionally, 
there was significant 
growth in math in grades

This Fall, school leadership 
developed targeted 
interventions in 
Mathematics for students 
in kindergarten through 8th 
grade. A significant 
amount of students at 
Beginning with Children
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New York City average on 
the NY State Common 
Core Math Exams. Only 
students who have been 
enrolled at BwCCS for at 
least two years will be 
included in this analysis. 
 
Measure 2 (Absolute): No 
Child Left Behind 
Outcomes Annual Yearly 
Progress (AYP). 
Each year, BwCCS’s 
aggregate Performance 
Index on the State Math 
Exam will meet its Annual 
Measurable Objective set 
forth in the State’s No 
Child Left Behind (NCLB) 
accountability system. 
 
Under NCLB, the State 
Education Department sets 
an Annual Measurable 
Objective (AMO) to 
determine if schools are 
making satisfactory 
progress towards the goal 
that 100 percent of students 
will be proficient in the 
State’s learning standards 
in Math by 2013-2014. To 
meet the standard in Math 
set in the Accountability 
Plan, all tested students 
must have a Performance 
Index (PI) value that equals 
or exceeds that year’s 
AMO in Math. The PI is 
calculated by adding the 
sum of the percent of 
students at level 2 and 
above with the sum of the 
percent of students at level 
3 and above. 
 
 
Measure 3 (Comparative): 
BwCCS student 
proficiency rates on the 
New York State Common 
Core Mathematics Exams. 
 
Each year, the proficiency 
rate on the NYS Common 
Core Mathematics Exams 
for BwCCS students will 
exceed the proficiency 
rates of students from 
Districts 14, 16, and 32 in

3-7. 
 
Measure 2: For 2013-2014,
the school's PI met its
AMO. 252 students were
tested, overall. The school's
PI was 86, which is greater
than the required AMO of
79. 
 
Measure 3: 
 
BwCCS collapsed
proficiency rate (31.4%)
exceeded NYC School
Districts 14 (27.3%), 16
(14.2%) and 32 (20.2%). 
 
Grades 4 (22.7%) and 5
(40.2%) overall proficiency
rates exceeded the District
14, 16 and 32. Grades 3
(31.4%) and 6 (27.5%)
overall proficiency rates
exceeded District 16 and
32 but not District 14.
Other grades did not meet
or exceed the required
goals. 
 
Measure 4: Grades 4 and 5
overall proficiency rates
exceeded proficiency rates
for Districts 14, 16, and 32.
In addition, the overal
proficiency in grades 3 and
6 exceeded proficiency
rates in District 16 and 32.
Other grade cohorts did not
meet or exceed the required
goal. 
 
Please note that beginning
in 2010, BwCCS
implemented the
TerraNova instead of the
Group Reading 
Assessment and Diagnostic
Evaluation (GRADE)
norm-referenced test to
measure student
longitudinal growth in
math. Therefore, the school
is not able to report on this
measure. 

Charter School achieved 
below grade level during 
the 2013-2014 school year 
according to normative 
measures of student 
learning. However, we 
believe that specific 
interventions in numeracy 
can have a transformative 
impact on student 
achievement. 
 
The school determined 
supportive interventions 
based on collected student 
data and connected 
academic research. In 
mathematics, teachers 
reviewed 3 sets of student 
achievement data, 
including the New York 
State examinations in math, 
iReady diagnostic 
assessments aligned with 
Common Core State 
Standards in math, and 
collected school 
performance data. 
 
Specific Interventions: 
 
1) External professional 
development 
 
Research demonstrates the 
need for meaningful 
professional development. 
Effective professional 
development can 
dramatically improve 
classroom instruction, 
student achievement, and 
school culture. (Yoon et al., 
2007) Elementary and 
middle school teachers 
both receive consistent 
school-based professional 
development, as well as 
customized training from 
advanced specialists in 
their field. 
 
Lower school teachers 
regularly work with highly 
skilled trainers from CITE, 
the Center for Integrated 
Teacher Education. CITE 
is a professional 
development service 
organization that provides
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NYC. Only students who
have been enrolled at
BwCCS for at least two
years will be included in
this analysis. 
 
 
Measure 4: If BwCCS does
not exceed the New York
City average proficiency
rate on the NYS Common
Core Mathematics Exams,
it will reduce by one half
the differences between the
NYC proficiency rate and
the actual BwCCS
proficiency rate on the
subsequent NYS Math
exam for the same class of
students. Only students
who have been enrolled at
BwCCS for at least two
years will be included in
this analysis. 

customized teacher training 
to schools. The lower 
school works with CITE to 
train teachers on the four 
CCSS writing expectations, 
including the development 
of clear, coherent, and 
substantive arguments. 
 
Middle school mathematics 
teachers attend ongoing 
seminars at Bank Street 
College of Education. Bank 
Street College of Education 
is a recognized leader in 
professional development 
and continuing education 
for teaching professionals. 
The seminars support 
development of best 
practice, including mastery 
of content knowledge and 
instructional frameworks. 
 
2) Interdisciplinary 
mathematics instruction 
 
Research argues that 
interdisciplinary instruction 
improves student 
engagement in core content 
and supports student 
achievement in the 
acquisition of shared 
concepts, strategies, and 
skills. (Elder, 2013) This 
year, leadership assigned 
additional teachers to 
support student learning in 
Math classrooms. In 
addition, middle school 
science teachers lead a 
Mathematics in Science 
period every week. Each 
week, the science and 
mathematics teachers also 
participate in common 
meetings that support 
instructional best practices, 
including facilitating 
student inquiry and 
classroom discussion. 
 
In the lower school, 
students complete Math 
Journals. Math Journals, 
inspired by reading and 
writing notebooks in 
English Language Arts, are 
individual notebooks where
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students record solutions to 
math problems. The 
notebooks emphasize 
process steps that support 
problem solving in 
alternative mathematics. 
The Journals also provide 
teachers a chronological 
record of the development 
of students’ mathematical 
thinking across the school 
year. 
 
3) A targeted intervention 
for students approaching 
grade level in Math 
 
The state establishes 
specific guidelines for 
student proficiency in 
Mathematics at each grade 
level. Students that achieve 
middle- to upper-level 2 
scores on the standardized 
exams most closely 
approach proficiency. 
These students will 
regularly attend Scholar 
Weekly Academy, an 
intensive after school 
program on Tuesdays and 
Thursdays to propel them 
forward. 
 
Our goal is to support 
targeted students with a 
consistent and focused 
curriculum. This 
curriculum will enrich and 
support our existing 
curriculum, as well as 
target specific skills that 
promote achievement on 
standardized exams. First, 
an enrichment curriculum 
will promote student 
engagement and fluency in 
literacy and numeracy. 
Secondly, a proven test 
preparation curriculum will 
help teachers assess and 
improve specific reading 
and writing skills to 
support. 
 
4) An immersive 
intervention for struggling 
students 
 
Students that achieve a
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Level 1 on state 
standardized are 
significantly below grade 
level proficiency. They 
require a comprehensive 
remedy that can quickly 
improve reading 
proficiency. These students 
will receive specific 
directed services during 
school time. In addition, 
students will regularly 
attend Scholar Weekly 
Academy and Saturday 
Academy. 
 
In mathematics, Do the 
Math is a research-based 
intervention for students 
significantly below grade 
level in mathematics. Do 
the Math uses blended 
instruction to assess 
mathematics proficiency 
and target specific skill 
deficits for middle school 
students. The instructional 
model uses three specific 
stations, including direct 
instruction from a teacher, 
guided practice on Do the 
Math software, and 
independent practice on 
core concepts, skills, and 
strategies. 
 
5) Continuous, immersive 
professional development 
for teachers 
 
A review of research 
literature in professional 
development explains that 
the most effective training 
is collaborative, 
comprehensive, embedded, 
intensive, and ongoing. 
(Blank and Alas, 2009) 
(Generation Ready, 2010) 
We are committed to 
developing relevant and 
highly-effective 
professional development 
for our teachers and staff. 
This Fall, teachers and staff 
completed a 
comprehensive survey on 
school climate, academic 
instruction, and 
professional development.
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Leadership analyzed the
results from the survey to
address systematic
concerns and design
comprehensive, ongoing
professional development. 
 
In addition to collective
professional development,
the school also provides
continuous supports to
teachers and staff by
department and by grade.
Teachers meet weekly to
plan instruction aligned to
city, state, and national
frameworks. In addition,
leadership meets
individually with each
teacher to develop and
advance specific goals and
objectives for curriculum,
instruction, and student
achievement.

Academic
Goal 3

BwCCS students will
become proficient in
Science.

Measure I (Absolute): Each
year, BwCCS students will
exceed the New York City
average on the 4th and 8th
grade NYS Science exams.
Only students who have
been enrolled at BwCCS
for at least two years will
be included in this analysis.

Measure 2 (Absolute): No
Child Left Behind
Outcomes Adequate Yearly
Progress (AYP).

Each year, BwCCS’s
performance index on the
4th and 8th grade State
Science exams will meet
the Annual Measurable
Objective set forth in the
State’s No Child Left
Behind (NCLB)
accountability system.

Measure 1 The school's
2013-2014 Science exam
results show a decease
from the previous year. In
part, we believe this was
due to a staffing issue that
we experience. This issue
has been rectified.

Measure 2 The school did
not meet this measure for
the 2013-2014 school year.

During the 2013-2014 
school year, the middle 
school struggled to fill 
several subject positions. In 
particular, the 7th and 8th 
grade Science position was 
unstaffed until late Spring. 
To address a deficiency in 
Science, the middle school 
hired a high-quality 
candidate that is 
dual-certified in Science 
Education and Special 
Education. In addition, 
students will complete 
benchmark assessments 
that link to supportive 
instruction from Study 
Island. The web-based 
program will monitor 
student progress of science 
concepts and 
understandings. 
 
The lower and middle 
schools both restructured 
our science programs for 
the 2014-2015 school year. 
First, students in grades 3-8 
will participate in 
integrative science 
laboratories. In addition, all 
middle school students will 
participate in an additional 
science laboratory each 
week. The science labs
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promote active application
of learned content. Second,
the lower school launched
a new Fusion science
curriculum for grades K-2.
The Fusion curriculum
promotes student inquiry,
leveled reading, and virtual
labs.

Academic
Goal 4

BwCCS students will
become proficient in
Social Studies.

Measure 1 (Absolute):
Student performance on the
New York State Social
Studies Exams.
Each year, BwCCS
students will exceed the
New York City average on
the 5th and 8th grade NYS
Social Studies exams. Only
students who have been
enrolled at BwCCS for at
least two years will be
included in this analysis.

Measure 2 (Absolute): No
Child Left Behind
Outcomes -- Adequate
Yearly Progress (AYP)

Each year, BwCCS’s
Performance Index on the
5th and 8th grade NYS
Social Studies Exam will
meet the Annual
Measurable Objective set
forth in the State’s No
Child Left Behind (NCLB)
accountability system.

Measure 1 The NYS 5th
and 8th grade social studies
test has been discontinued;
therefore this measure
cannot be reported on.

Measure 2 The NYS 5th
and 8th grade social studies
test has been discontinued;
therefore this measure
cannot be reported on.

Academic
Goal 5

NCLB Accountability
System

Measure 1: School 
performance on the NCLB 
accountability system. 
Under the state’s 
accountability system, the 
school’s Accountability 
Status will be “Charter 
School in Good Standing” 
each year. 
 
Adequate Yearly Progress 
(AYP) in ELA, Math and 
Science is measured 
according to participation 
and performance criteria. 
In Math and ELA, 95% of 
students (in classes of at 
least 40 students) must 
participate in the state 
exams, and in Science, 
80% of students in the

This measure was met.
BwCCS’ current NCLB
accountability status, based
on the 2013-2014 Report
Card is “Charter School in
Good Standing.”
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tested grades. For Math and
ELA, performance criteria
demand that each group
with 30 or more
continuously enrolled
students must equal or
exceed its Effective Annual
Measurable Objective or
the group must make Safe
Harbor. For Science, the PI
of the All Students group
must equal or exceed the
State Science Standard
(100) or the Science
Progress Target. 
 
 

Academic
Goal 6

BwCCS students will
become proficient in
Technology, Art, Music,
and Physical Education.

Measure 1: At least 75% of
students will receive a
proficiency rating on their
spring report cards in
Technology.

Measure 2: At least 75% of
students will receive a
proficiency rating on their
spring report cards in Art.

Measure 3: At least 75% of
students will receive a
proficiency rating on their
spring report cards in
Music.

Measure 4: At least 75% of
students will receive a
proficiency rating on their
spring report cards in PE.

Measure 1: This measure
was not met because
BwCCS 1 no longer offers
a Technology course. This
past year, a consultant from
Educate LLC was retained
to work with the teachers
on their skills in
technology and integrate
technology in the
curriculum.

Measure 2: In the Spring
2013-2014, Quarter 4,
100% of students achieved
proficiency in Art. This
measure was met.

Measure 3: In the Spring
2013-2014, Quarter 4,
100% of students achieved
proficiency in Music. This
measure was met.

Measure 4: In the spring
2013-2014 Quarter 4,
100% of students achieved
proficiency in PE. This
measure was met.

Academic
Goal 7

Parent will express a high
satisfaction rating with the
school.

Measure 1: Each year, 
responses on the Annual 
Parent Survey on the 
School’s program will 
exceed the city. The 
following 3 areas of the 
program will be rated: 
Instructional Core, Systems 
for Improvement, and 
School Culture. 

The BwCCS school 
community completes a 
survey each year to 
measure the satisfaction of 
parents, students and 
teachers. The school used 
data to evaluate the 
school’s overall 
instructional program and 
curriculum. The survey’s 
questions are organized and

During the 2013-2014 
school year, Beginning 
with Children experienced 
a high level of teacher 
turnover. This contributed 
significantly to the low rate 
of completion of the school 
satisfaction survey. 
 
This year, a new school 
leadership team has worked
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The BwCCS school
community completes a
survey each year to
measure the satisfaction of
parents, students and
teachers. The school used
data to evaluate the
school’s overall
instructional program and
curriculum. The survey’s
questions are organized and
reported on Instructional
Core, School Culture and
Systems for Improvement.
The Leadership Team and
teachers analyze the data
from the survey to ensure
the school community is
satisfied. 

reported on Instructional
Core, School Culture and
Systems for Improvement.
The Leadership Team and
teachers analyze the data
from the survey to ensure
the school community is
satisfied. 
 
In 2013-2014, 65% of
parents completed the
school satisfaction survey,
as compared to 54% of
parents at other New York
City schools. In addition,
89% of students completed
the satisfaction survey as
compared to 83% of
student at other New York
City schools. However,
only 63% of teachers
completed the satisfaction
survey, as compared to
83% of teachers at other
New York City schools. 
 
School satisfaction survey
results meet or exceed the
city’s rates for satisfaction
in instructional core and
systems for improvements
categories. However, the
rate of satisfaction for
school culture (83%) is
below the city average
(87%).

diligently to develop a
positive and open school
culture. We hold regular
conversations with the
school staff that encourage
collaboration, discussion,
and transparency. In
addition, we reset ideas
around school culture and
school expectations
through joint conversations
with leadership, teachers,
and staff. We are strongly
committed to transforming
our school culture in the
coming year. 
 
To support our goals, we
developed a school climate
survey, including sections
on school leadership,
academic instruction, and
professional development.
Teachers completed the
first survey in early
September in response to
their experience during the
2013-2014 school year. We
recently completed a
follow up survey on our
performance so far. 
 
Teacher attitudes are
dramatically improved
overall. For example, 23%
of teachers reported that
they did not want to come
to work each day. In
contrast, 0% of teachers
report that as of November
2014. In addition, only
31% of teachers felt they
were trusted and only 23%
of teachers felt they were
respected last year. In
contrast, 69% of teachers
feel trusted and 85% of
teachers feel respected as
of November 2014. 

Academic
Goal 8

BwCCS will maintain a
low attrition rate.

Measure 1: Each
September, no more than
10% of students' families,
amont all students enrolled
the previous year, will
choose to withdraw their
children from the school
because they are
dissatisfied with the
school's program.

This year, 73 (roughly
16.5%) students withdrew
because of dissatisfaction
with the school's program.
This figure includes
students whose families
specified that they were
dissatisfied on their
discharge papers, as well as
5th grade students who

Last winter, the Beginning 
with Children Foundation 
signaled their intention to 
close the original 
Foundation school, 
Beginning with Children 
Charter School. In 
response, the school 
community, including 
teachers, staff, alumni, and
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withdrew to attend their
home district middle
schools due to the threat of
closure by the Beginning
with Children Foundation.

student families, 
strengthened our 
commitment to provide 
students with the highest 
quality education. 
However, the extended 
process also significantly 
impacted school progress, 
including curriculum 
development, teacher 
recruitment, and student 
retention. 
 
School leadership defined 
goals and objectives for 
school culture, academic 
instruction, and 
professional development 
for the 2013-2014 school 
year. Our primary goal is to 
dramatically improve 
student learning over the 
next two years. We believe 
that parents, students, and 
teachers will increasingly 
commit to a new and 
improved community 
school. 
 
First, we are determined to 
establish a positive and 
collaborative school 
culture. At times, there was 
significant tension between 
our former school 
leadership and the 
instructional and 
professional staff. During 
the last several years, more 
than 25 teachers have left 
their positions at our 
school. Research shows 
that consistent staff 
turnover has a significant 
negative impact on student 
achievement, including a 
particularly strong effect on 
traditionally 
low-performing students. 
(Ronfeldt et al., 2011) 
 
Second, we have a defined 
commitment to help 
teachers develop more 
effective instructional 
methods and practices. 
Sustained professional 
development includes 
weekly school meetings at 
the lower and middle
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schools. In addition,
leadership consistently
helps develop, model, and
assess classroom
instruction. We believe that
strong and improving
instruction is an essential
pathway to student
achievement. Consistent
research demonstrates the
transformative impact that
excellent teachers have on
student learning. (TNTP,
2012) 
 
Third, we have developed
comprehensive support
services for at-risk
students, including an
immersive intervention
program for our most
struggling students.
Teachers analyzed
collected data, including
benchmark diagnostic
assessments, state
standardized exams, and
classroom assessments, to
identify two targeted
groups of students. We
believe that targeted
supportive services will
provide students clear
pathways for improvement
and growth.

2a1. Do have more academic goals to add?

Yes

2013-14 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals
Academic Student
Performance Goal

Measure Used to Evaluate
Progress

2013-2014 Progress Toward
Attainment

If Not Met, Describe Efforts
to be Taken

Academic
Goal 9

BwCCS students
will maintain a high
attendance rate.

Measure 1: Each year,
BwCCS will have a daily
attendance rate of at least
90%.

The average daily attendance
rate for 2013-2014 was 82%.

To address the daily 
attendance rate, the school 
will send letters to families of 
students who have two or 
more consecutive absences. 
In addition, the principal, 
social worker and/or 
guidance counselor will meet 
with the family of the student 
to create a plan of 
improvement. 
 
In addition, positive 
incentives for attendance will
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be implemented. Perfect
attendance awards will be
given to students who have
perfect attendance each
month.

Academic
Goal 10

BwCCS will be
substantially
compliant with all
legal requirements.

Measure 1: Each year,
BwCCS will generally and
substantially comply with all
applicable laws, rules, and
regulations, including, but
not limited to, the New York
Charter Schools Act, the New
York Freedom of Information
Law, the New York Open
Meetings Law, the Federal
Individuals with Disabilities
Education Act and Federal
Family Educational Rights
and Privacy Act, and the
provisions of its By-Laws
and Charter.

Measure 2: Each year,
BwCCS will have in place
and maintain effective
systems, policies, and other
controls for ensuring that
legal and charter
requirements are met.

Measure 3: Each year,
BwCCS will maintain a
relationship with legal
counsel who reviewed the
relevant policies, documents,
and incidents, and make
recommendations as needed
and in proportion to the legal
expertise on the Board of
Trustees.

Measure 1: This past year,
the school continued to
comply with all public
policies and procedures,
by-laws, Charter and
Monitoring Agreement.

Measure 2: This past year,
BwCCS has continued to
have in place effective
systems, policies, and other
controls to ensure legal and
charter requirements.

Measure 3: BwCCS has met
all requirements for this
measure. During the middle
of 2013-2014, the current
Board retained an attorney to
assist with the transition from
the Foundation and provide
any and all legal arguments
into the daily operations of
the children.

2a2. Do have more academic goals to add?

No
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Page 2

2b. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS

2013-14 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals
Organizational
Goal

Measure Used to Evaluate
Progress

2013-14 Progress Toward
Attainment

If Not Met, Describe Efforts to
be Taken

2b.1 Do you have more organizational goals to add?

(No response)

2013-14 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals
Organizational
Goal

Measure Used to Evaluate
Progress

2013-2014 Progress Toward
Attainment

If Not Met, Describe Efforts
to be Taken

2c. FINANCIAL GOALS

2013-14 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals
Financial Goals Measure Used to Evaluate

Progress
2013-2014 Progress Toward
Attainment

If Not Met,
Describe
Efforts to
be Taken

Financial
Goal 1

BwCCS will make
responsible financial
decisions and demonstrate
sound fiscal practices and
management.

Measure 1: Over the life of the 
charter, BwCCS will operate on 
a balanced budget. 
Measure 2: BwCCS will receive 
unqualified opinions from its 
annual auditor. 
Measure 3: Each year, BwCCS 
will take corrective action, if 
needed, in a timely manner to 
address any internal control or 
compliance deficiencies 
identified by its external auditor, 
authorizer or the New York 
State 
Department of Education. 
Measure 4: Each year, the 
BwCCS Board of Trustees will 
provide effective financial 
oversight, including financial 
decisions that further the 
school’s mission, program and 
goals. 
Measure 5: Each year, BwCCS 
will operate pursuant to a 
long-range financial plan and 
create realistic budgets that are 
monitored and adjusted when 
appropriate. 
Measure 6: Each year, BwCCS

Measure 1: Each year, BwCCS 
is keenly focused on achieving a 
balanced budget. The Board 
meets on a monthly basis to 
discuss the school’s financial 
standing at its meetings. In 
addition, the Chair of the 
Finance Committee consults on 
a 
regular basis with the Principal 
and financial consultant. 
Measure 2: BwCCS retains 
Fruchter & Rosen as our 
auditors. They review the 
school’s finances during the 
annual audit in the late summer 
and make a report to the Board 
in the fall. Since the 
charter’s inception in 2001, 
BwCCS has received 1 
unqualified opinions on its 
financial statements from an 
independent auditor. 
Measure 3: BwCCS regularly 
reviews and revises the internal 
control procedures to be in 
compliance with its external 
auditor, SED and DOE. 
Measure 4: BwCCS's Board of
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will maintain appropriate
internal 
controls and procedures and
accurately document
transactions in accordance with
the Board of 
Trustees’ direction and laws,
regulations, grants and
contracts. 
Measure 7: Each year, BwCCS
will comply with financial
reporting requirements. 
Measure 8: Over the life of the
charter, BwCCS will maintain
adequate financial resources to 
ensure stable operations and
successfully monitor and
manage cash flow 

Trustees is prepared to provide 
sound financial oversight to
further the school’s mission,
programs and goals. The
BwCCS 
Board meets approximately 
every month. At each meeting,
the state of the school’s
financial 
position is presented to the full
Board for review and
discussion. 
The financial committee works
directly with the school
leadership to develop the annual 
budget each year. The 
school’s needs and desires are
addressed during the budget
process. 
Measure 5: The Finance 
Committee conducts extensive
budget meetings each spring.
We 
make adjustments to the long
range plan according to
programmatic needs. BwCCS
has defined a
long-rangefinancial plan and
adjusts this 
plan each year during its budget
process. Adjustments are made 
with full Board review and 
approval during the year as
needed. 
Measure 6: The Board reviews
the school’s Financial Policies 
and Procedures on a regular
basis. 
BwCCS maintains appropriate 
internal controls and procedures
and accurately documents
transactions in accordance with 
the Board of Trustees’ direction
and laws, regulations, grants and 
contracts. 
Measure 7: BwCCS has been in
full compliance with all
financial reporting requirements
to our Board of Trustees and
regulatory bodies. 
Measure 8: BwCCS maintains 
adequate financial resources to
ensure stable operations and
successfully monitors and 
manages cash flow.
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Appendix I: Teacher and Administrator Attrition
Created Monday, October 20, 2014
Updated Tuesday, October 21, 2014

Page 1

Charter School Name: 331400860825 BEGINNING WITH CHLDRN CS

Instructions for completing the Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables
ALL charter schools should provide, for teachers and administrators only, the full time
equivalent (FTE) of staff on June 30, 2013, the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2013 through
June 30, 2014, and the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014
using the two tables provided. 

2013-14 Teacher Attrition Table
FTE Teachers on June 30,
2013

FTE Teachers Additions 7/1/13 –
6/30/14

FTE Teacher Departures 7/1/13 –
6/30/14

32 2 6

2013-14 Administrator Position Attrition Table
FTE Administrator Positions On
6/30/2013

FTE Administrator Additions 7/1/13
– 6/30/14

FTE Administrator Departures
7/1/13 – 6/30/14

6 5 1

Thank you
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Appendix J: Uncertified Teachers
Created Friday, October 17, 2014

Page 1

Charter School Name: 331400860825 BEGINNING WITH CHLDRN CS

Note Definition of FTE:
Full-time equivalent employees equal the number of employees on full-time schedules plus the
number of employees on part-time schedules converted to a full-time basis. The number of
full-time equivalent employees in each industry is the product of the total number of employees
and the ratio of average weekly hours per employee for all employees to average weekly hours
per employee on full-time schedules. An industry’s full-time equivalent employment will be less
than the number of its employees on full- and part-time schedules, unless it has no part-time
employees (U.S. Commerce--Bureau of Economic Analysis at:
http://www.bea.gov/faq/index.cfm?faq_id=368#sthash.8Rbj89kq.dpuf)

How many UNCERTIFIED Full-Time Equivalent Teachers were employed in the charter school
as of last day of school in 2013-14?

For each applicable category (i-iv), input the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers. 

FTE

(i) uncertified teachers with at least three years of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching
experience

4

(ii) tenured or tenure track college faculty 0

(iii) individuals with two years satisfactory experience through Teach for America 0

(iv) individuals who possess exceptional business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military experience 0

Total FTE (Sum of all Uncertified Teaching Staff) 4

How many CERTIFIED Full-Time Equivalent Teachers were employed in the charter school as
of the last day of school in 2013-14?

24

Thank you.

http://www.bea.gov/faq/index.cfm?faq_id=368#sthash.8Rbj89kq.dpuf)
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Appendix B: Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures
per Child
Created Friday, August 01, 2014

Page 1

Charter School Name: 331400860825 BEGINNING WITH CHLDRN CS

B. Financial Information 
This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative
Expenditures Per Child):
 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2013-14 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and
divide by the count of students you reported on of BEDS Day. (Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas).

1. Total Expenditures Per Child | Line 1: Total Expenditures 6988133

1. Total Expenditures Per Child | Line 2: BEDS Day Pupil Count 408

1. Total Expenditures Per Child | Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 17128

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the
‘management and general’ column (from the unaudited 2013-14 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the BEDS per pupil
count.  The relevant portion that must be included in this calculation is defined as follows:

Administrative Expenditures:  Administration and management of the charter school includes the activities and personnel of the offices
of the chief school officers, the treasurer, the finance or business offices, the purchasing unit, the employee personnel offices, the
records management offices, or a public information and services offices.  It also includes those administrative and management
services provided by other organizations or corporations on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other
compensation.  
 
Please note the following:

Do not include the FTE of personnel dedicated to administration of the instructional programs.
Do not include Employee Benefit costs or expenditures in the above calculations. 
A template for the Schedule of Functional Expenses is provided on page 21 of the 2012 Annual Report Guidelines to assist schools
identify the categories of expenses needed to compute the two per pupil calculations. This template does not need to be completed
or submitted on August 1st as it will be submitted November 1st as part of the audited financial statements. Therefore schools should
use unaudited amounts for these per pupil calculations. (See the 2013-14 Annual Report Guidelines in "Resources" area of your portal
task page).

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant portion from the
‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ column (from the 2013-14
Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the count of students as of BEDS Day.
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas).
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To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel
services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ column (from the 2013-14 Schedule of Functional
Expenses) and divide by the count of students as of BEDS Day. (Integers Only. No dollar signs or
commas). | Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services Cost (Row)

468692

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel
services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ column (from the 2013-14 Schedule of Functional
Expenses) and divide by the count of students as of BEDS Day. (Integers Only. No dollar signs or
commas). | Line 2: Management and General Cost (Column)

714321

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel
services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ column (from the 2013-14 Schedule of Functional
Expenses) and divide by the count of students as of BEDS Day. (Integers Only. No dollar signs or
commas). | Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2

1183013

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel
services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ column (from the 2013-14 Schedule of Functional
Expenses) and divide by the count of students as of BEDS Day. (Integers Only. No dollar signs or
commas). | Line 4: BEDS Day Pupil Count

408

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel
services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ column (from the 2013-14 Schedule of Functional
Expenses) and divide by the count of students as of BEDS Day. (Integers Only. No dollar signs or
commas). | Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the BEDS Day Pupil Count

2900

Thank you.
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Audited Financial Statement Checklist
Created Friday, October 31, 2014

Page 1

Charter School Name: 

1. Please check each item that is included in the 2013-14 Audited Financial Statement submitted
for your charter school.

Yes/No

Audited Financial Statements (including report on compliance and report on internal control over
financial reporting)

Yes

Single Audit (if applicable) Not Applicable

CSP Agreed Upon Procedures (if applicable) Not Applicable

Management Letter Yes

Report on Extracurricular Student Activity Accounts (if applicable) Not Applicable

Corrective Action Plans for any Findings Yes

2. Please indicated if there is a finding(s) noted in any of the following sections of your charter
school's 2013-14 Audited Financial Statement.

Yes/No

Report on Compliance No

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting No

Single Audit No

CSP Agreed Upon Procedures Report No

Management Letter No

Thank you.



FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

156 WEST 56TH
STREET

NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10019
_________

TEL:  (212) 957-3600
FAX:  (212) 957-3696

October 28, 2014

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees of
BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL

We have audited the financial statements of BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL (the 
“School”) for the year ended June 30, 2014, and have issued our report thereon dated October 28, 2014.  
Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibilities under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Government Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated May, 13, 2014, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your 
oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

As part of our audit, we will consider the internal control of the School. Such considerations are solely for the 
purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we will perform tests of the School’s compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants. However, the objective of our tests is not to provide an opinion on compliance with such 
provisions.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed our audit according to the plan previously communicated to you prior to commencement of our 
audit field work. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the School are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting 
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year ended June 30, 
2014. We noted no transactions entered into by the School during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period.
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Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements 
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. 
The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements are as follows:

 Collectability of grants and contracts receivables

 Useful lives of fixed assets

 Allocation of costs for the schedule of functional expenses

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the above estimates in determining that it was 
reasonable in relation to the financial statement taken as a whole.  The financial statement disclosures are 
neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than those 
that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  In addition, we are 
required to communicate with those charged with governance uncorrected misstatements and the effect that they 
may have on the opinion in the auditor’s report, and request their correction.  None of the misstatements 
detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the 
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated October 28, 2014.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of 
an accounting principle to the School’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion 
that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to 
check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants.
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Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the School’s auditors. However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our 
retention.

We have issued a separate report to you dated October 28, 2014, communicating internal control related matters 
identified during the audit.

Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain 
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to 
determine that the information complies with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, the method of 
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation 
to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the 
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Audit Committee, the Board of Trustees and management 
of the School and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,



BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013



BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

CONTENTS

PAGE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 1 - 2

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Statements of financial position 3

Statements of activities 4

Statements of cash flows 5

Notes to financial statements 6 – 13

Independent auditors’ report on supplementary information 14

Schedule of functional expenses 15

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 16 – 17

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 18 



FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

156 WEST 56
TH

STREET

NEW YORK, NEW YORK  10019
_________

TEL:  (212) 957-3600
FAX:  (212) 957-3696

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Beginning with Children Charter School (the 
“School”) (a not-for-profit corporation), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 
2014, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, 
and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the School’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the School as of June 30, 2014, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

The School’s 2013 financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report dated October 28, 
2013, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative 
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, is consistent, in all material 
respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 28, 
2014, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance.

New York, New York
October 28, 2014



2014 2013
ASSETS

Current assets:
  Cash and cash equivalents 1,003,234$    765,691$       
  Grants and contracts receivable 251,167         230,637
  Investments 1,240,840      2,011,501
  Assets designated by board for facilities and personnel 62,108           62,108
  Prepaid expenses and other current assets 19,838           46,652

Total current assets 2,577,187      3,116,589      

Other assets:
  Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
     and amortization of $1,081,238 and $1,052,608, respectively 85,568           110,138         
  Restricted cash 70,332           70,299           

Total other assets 155,900         180,437         

TOTAL ASSETS 2,733,087$    3,297,026$    

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:

  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 760,500$       100,465$       
  Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 443,819         919,604         
  Due to Beginning with Children Foundation -                 5,778

Total current liabilities 1,204,319      1,025,847      

Net assets:
    Unrestricted:
        Board-designated 62,108           62,108           
        Undesignated 1,463,485      2,209,071      
          Total unrestricted 1,525,593      2,271,179      

     Temporarily restricted 3,175             -                 

Total net assets 1,528,768      2,271,179      

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2,733,087$    3,297,026$    

BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total 2013

Operating revenue:
    State and local per pupil operating revenue 6,166,252$    -                 6,166,252$    6,614,239$    
    Federal grants 270,372 -                 270,372         283,969         

Total operating revenue 6,436,624      -                 6,436,624      6,898,208      

Operating expenses:
Program services

Regular education 5,053,988      -                 5,053,988      5,054,520      
Special education 1,103,287      -                 1,103,287      1,342,625      

Total program expenses 6,157,275      -                 6,157,275      6,397,145      

Management and general 1,129,475      -                 1,129,475      592,711         

Total operating expenses 7,286,750      -                 7,286,750      6,989,856      

Deficit from operations (850,126)        -                 (850,126)        (91,648)          

Support and other revenue:
Contributions and grants - private 9,497 15,000           24,497           6,482
Donated services 60,000 -                 60,000           -                 
Investment income 23,218 -                 23,218           16,229
Net assets released from restrictions 11,825           (11,825)          -                 -                 

Total support and other revenue 104,540         3,175             107,715         22,711           

Changes in net assets (745,586)        3,175             (742,411)        (68,937)          

Net assets - beginning of year 2,271,179      -                 2,271,179      2,340,116      

Net assets - end of year 1,525,593$    3,175$           1,528,768$    2,271,179$    

BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,

2014

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Changes in net assets (742,411)$      (68,937)$        
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to cash 

(used in) provided by operating activities:
Unrealized gain on investements (4,339)            (85)                 
Depreciation and amortization 28,629           77,530           

(Increase) Decrease in certain assets:
Grants and contracts receivable (20,530)          29,654           
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 26,814           (46,652)          
Due from teacher's retirement systems -                 321,320         

Increase (Decrease) in certain liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 660,035         (72,803)          
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes (475,785)        -                 
Due to Beginning with Children Foundation (5,778)            (20,604)          

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (533,365)        219,423         

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment (4,060)            (62,606)          
Proceeds from maturity of investments 775,001         399,875         
Purchase of investements -                 (1,075,000)     
Increase in restricted cash (33)                 (47)                 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 770,908         (737,778)        

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 237,543         (518,355)        

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 765,691         1,284,046      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 1,003,234$    765,691$       

BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 1 - PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization
Beginning with Children Charter School (the "School") is an educational corporation that 
operates a charter school in the borough of Brooklyn, New York. On September 15, 2000, 
the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York for and on behalf of the New 
York State Education Department granted the School a provisional charter valid for a term of 
five years from the effective date of September 1, 2001, and renewable upon expiration. The 
School was converted from an existing New York City Department of Education (the 
"NYCDOE") school. On June 21, 2011, the School was reviewed by its authorizer and 
received a second five-year renewal of its charter from the Board of Regents of the University 
of the State of New York for and on behalf of the State Education Department through June 
30, 2016.  The School provided education to approximately 408 students in kindergarten
through eighth grades during the 2013-2014 academic year.  

The School's mission is to provide a diverse, caring and nurturing learning community that 
fosters high academic achievement and the development of ethical character for elementary 
and middle school students. An enriched curriculum and dynamic partnerships between the 
School, families and community enable all students to excel. Continual assessment and
evaluation enhance the education program. The School prepares graduates for success in high 
school, college and beyond by developing independent thinkers and active citizens.

In accordance with the agreement to convert the School from the existing NYCDOE School, 
the employees of the School are members of various unions.

Food and Transportation Services
The New York City Department of Education provides free lunches and transportation 
directly to a majority of the School’s students.  Such costs are not included in these financial 
statements.  The School covers the cost of lunches for children not entitled to the free lunches.

Tax Status
The School is exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue 
Code as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) and a similar provision under New 
York State income tax laws.  The School has also been classified as an entity that is not a 
private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) and qualifies for deductible 
contributions as provided in section 170(b)(l)(A)(ii).  The School is subject to income taxes 
only on net unrelated business income. The School did not have any unrelated business 
income for the years end June 30, 2014 and 2013.

The School’s accounting policy provides that a tax expense or benefit from an uncertain 
tax position may be recognized when it is more likely than not that the position will be 
sustained upon examination, including resolutions of any related appeals or litigation 
processes, based on the technical merits. The School has no uncertain tax positions 
resulting in an accrual of tax expense or benefit.
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BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 1 - PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Tax Status (Continued)
IRS Forms 990 filed by the School are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue 
Service up to three years from the extended due date of each return.  Forms 990 filed by 
the School are no longer subject to examination for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010, 
and prior.

Basis of Presentation
The financial statement presentation follows the requirements of the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (“FASB”) in its Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) No. 958-205 
which provides guidance for the classification of net assets. The amounts for each of the 
three classes of net assets are based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed 
restrictions described as follows:

Unrestricted
Unrestricted net assets of the School are assets whose use has not been restricted by an 
outside donor or by law.  The unrestricted net assets represent the portion of 
expendable funds that are available for the support of the operations of the School.

Board-designated net assets were established by the Board of Trustees to provide a 
reserve for unforeseen facility, personnel, and other issues.

Temporarily Restricted
Net assets of the School whose use has been limited by donor-imposed stipulations that 
either expire with the passage of time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the 
School.  When such stipulations end or are fulfilled, such temporarily restricted net 
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of 
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Permanently Restricted
Net assets of the School whose use has been permanently limited by donor-imposed 
restrictions.  Such assets include contributions required to be invested in perpetuity, the 
income from which is available to support charitable purposes designated by the 
donors.  

The School had no permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Revenue and Support
Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the School that is, in 
substance, unconditional. Grants and other contributions of cash are reported as temporarily 
restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations.  Restricted contributions and 
grants that are made to support the School’s current year activities are recorded as unrestricted 
revenue. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value.
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BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 1 - PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and Support (Continued)
Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status and 
based on the number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in 
accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and other state and local funds are recorded 
when expenditures are incurred and billable to the government agency.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.  Accordingly, actual results 
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, the School considers all highly liquid debt 
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Concentration of Credit Risk
Financial instruments which potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit risk are 
cash and cash equivalents.  The School places its cash and cash equivalents on deposit in what 
it believes to be highly credited financial institutions.  Cash balances may exceed the FDIC 
insured levels of $250,000 per institution at various times during the year. The School 
believes that there is little risk in any losses and has not experienced any losses in such 
accounts.

Property and Equipment
Purchased property and equipment are recorded at cost. Maintenance and repairs are expensed 
as incurred. All property and equipment purchased with government funding, whereas the 
government agency retains legal title to the long lived asset is expensed as incurred.  
Depreciation and amortization is provided on the straight line method over the estimated 
useful lives as follows:

Furniture and fixtures       5 years
Computers and equipment 5 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years

Restricted Cash
Under the provisions of its charter, the School established an escrow account to pay for legal 
and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution should it occur.

Refundable Advances
The School records certain government operating revenue as refundable advances until 
related services are performed, at which time they are recognized as revenue.
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BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 1 - PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Comparative Financial Information
The accompanying statements of activities and functional expenses are presented with 
summarized comparative information. Such prior year information is not presented by net 
asset class in the statement of activities or by functional category in the statement of 
functional expenses. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the 
School's 2013 financial statements from which the summarized information was derived.

Reclassifications
Certain 2013 accounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2014 financial statement 
presentation.  The reclassifications have no effect on the 2013 total assets, liabilities, net assets 
and changes in net assets.

NOTE 2 - GRANTS AND CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE

Grants and contracts receivable consist of federal, state, and city entitlements and grants. The 
School expects to collect these receivables within one year.

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30,:

2014 2013
Furniture and fixtures $ 61,138 $ 61,138
Computers, equipment, and software 723,171 719,111
Leasehold improvements 382,497 382,497

1,166,806 1,162,746
Less: Accumulated depreciation    

and amortization (1,081,238) (1,052,608)
$         85,568 $      110,138

Depreciation and amortization expense was $28,629 and $77,530 for the years ended June 30, 
2014 and 2013, respectively.
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BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 4 - RELATED PARTY TRANSCACTIONS

The Beginning with Children Foundation (‘the Foundation”) is a not-for-profit organization 
that was the educational manager to the School during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 
and 2013. The Foundation and the School entered into a Memorandum of Understanding 
(“MOU”) Agreement with the School. Pursuant to the terms of the MOU agreement, the 
School agreed to pay service fees to the foundation in the amounts of $630,498 and $636,493
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Under the terms of the MOU, 
the Foundation was to support the School in the areas of leadership and strategy, curriculum, 
and assessment, research and evaluation, business services, compliance, development, 
technology, communications, outreach, and alumni program management. Amounts due to 
the Foundation at June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $-0- and $5,778, respectively.  Mid-school 
year the Foundation informed the School that it would not renew its agreement with the 
School after June 30, 2014. As of July 1, 2014 the School has severed its ties with the 
Foundation. The School has requested an amendment to its charter to remove the Foundation 
as the charter management organization in its charter application.

NOTE 5 - INVESTMENTS

Investments held by the School at June 30, 2014 and 2013 consists of certificates of deposit in 
the amounts of $1,302,948 and $2,073,609, respectively.

These investments are presented in the statements of financial position at fair value. 
Unrealized and realized gains and losses are included in the statements of activities. 

Investment income consists of the following as of June 30,:

2014 2013
Interest and dividends $ 18,879 $ 16,144
Unrealized gain 4,339 85

Net investment income $ 23,218 $ 16,229

NOTE 6 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements, establishes a framework for measuring fair 
value.  The framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation 
techniques used to measure fair value.  The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted 
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the 
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). 

The three levels of fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for 
identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the plan has the ability to access.
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BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
 
 

NOTE 6 -  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 
 
 Level 2 – Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 
 

 quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 
 quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive 

markets; 
 inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or 

liability; 
 inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by 

observable market data by correlation or other means; 
 If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the level 2 

input must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset 
or liability. 

 
Level 3 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the 
fair value measurement. 

 
The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based 
on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.  Valuation 
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs.  
 
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair 
value. 
 

    Money market: Valued at quoted market prices.  
 

  Certificates of deposit: Valued at original cost plus accrued interest, which approximates 
fair value. 

 
The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the School’s 
investments at June 30,: 
 
  2014  
  Level 1   Level 2   Level 3   Total  

Money market $ 102,445 $ - $ - $ 102,445 
Certificates of deposit  
   (included in investments 
    and assets designated by 
    board for facilities and 
    personnel)  -    1,302,948  -  1,302,948 
    
 $ 102,445 $ 1,302,948 $ - $ 1,405,393 
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BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 6 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

                                          2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Money market $ 7,038 $ - $ - $ 7,038
Certificates of deposit
   (included in investments
    and assets designated by
    board for facilities and
    personnel) -   2,073,609 - 2,073,609

$ 7,038 $   2,073,609 $ - $ 2,080,647

NOTE 7 - CONTINGENCY

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources.  Such audits 
might result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursements.  Management is of the 
opinion that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the 
accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the 
accompanying financial statements for such potential claims.

NOTE 8 - REVENUE CONCENTRATION

The School receives a substantial portion of its support and revenue from the New York City 
Department of Education. If the charter school laws were modified, reducing or eliminating 
these revenues, the School’s finances could be materially adversely affected.

NOTE 9 - FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSE

Directly identifiable expenses are charged to programs and supporting services. Expenses 
related to more than one function are charged to programs and supporting services on the 
basis of periodic time and expense studies. Management and general expense includes those 
expenses that are not directly identifiable with any other specific function, but provide for the 
overall support and direction of the School.

NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT PLAN

The School contributes to various pension funds determined by union membership of 
employees at the School. The amount charged to operations for contributions to these funds 
was approximately $552,000 and $537,000 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively.
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BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 11 - DONATED SERVICES

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with ASC 958-605, 
Contributed Services, if the services (a) create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require 
specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills, and would otherwise be 
purchased by the School. One entity has provided legal services to the School at no charge.  
The value of these services meets the criteria for recognition in the financial statements and is 
recorded at fair value.  For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the value of such donated 
services amounted to $60,000 and $-0-, respectively.

The value of these donated goods and services is included in management and general 
services in the accompanying statements of activities and schedules of functional expenses.

NOTE 12 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

At June 30, 2014, temporarily restricted net assets of $3,175 consist of funds restricted for 
computer equipment.  During the year ended June 30, 2014, the School released $11,825  
from temporarily restricted funds.

NOTE 13 - SCHOOL FACILITIES

As a conversion charter school, the School continues to occupy approximately 39,000 square 
feet of space in its original facility located at 11 Bartlett Street in Williamsburg, Brooklyn. 
The upper grades at the School occupy approximately 10,000 square feet of space in an 
existing public school facility at 185 Ellery Street in Williamsburg. These facilities, in whole 
or part, have been made available at no charge to the School by the NYCDOE through June 
30, 2014 and sometime thereafter.

The Beginning with Children Foundation, formerly the charter management organization of 
the School, has threatened to evict the School, if the School does not relinquish the property 
currently occupied by the lower school at 11 Bartlett Street by July 15, 2015. In response, the 
School has made a formal request to the Department of Education to provide the School 
alternative DOE space for the 2015-2016 school year. While there is no pending litigation, the 
School may need to defend an eviction proceeding or pay for rent of another space for 2015-
2016 school year, thereby expending additional monies.

NOTE 14 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In preparing these financial statements, the School has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through October 28, 2014, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued.
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FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

156 WEST 56
TH

STREET

NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10019
_________

TEL:  (212) 957-3600
FAX:  (212) 957-3696

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
ON ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL

We have audited the financial statements of Beginning with Children Charter School as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2014, and have issued our report thereon dated October 28, 2014, which contained an 
unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an 
opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The schedule of functional expenses is presented for the 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

New York, New York
October 28, 2014



Total Management
Regular Special Program and

Education Education Service General Total 2013
Salaries 2,610,306$     570,521$    3,180,827$ 579,337$   3,760,164$ 3,705,701$        
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 1,124,159       245,702      1,369,861   249,498     1,619,359   1,510,513          
Occupancy 62,194            13,480        75,674        -             75,674        86,482               
Classroom instructional material and supplies 146,327          31,715        178,042      -             178,042      215,327             
Trips and admissions 23,510            5,095          28,605        28,605        24,308
Research and development 85,845            18,606        104,451      -             104,451      43,707
Staff development 66,923            14,627        81,550        14,853       96,403        72,702
After-school, summer school and substitutes 359,460          77,908        437,368      437,368      258,730
Consultants 25,797            5,591          31,388        -             31,388        108,953
Employee search fees -                  -              -              -             -              10,150
Management fee 437,692          95,664        533,356      97,142       630,498      636,493
Accounting and legal fees -                  -              -              108,259     108,259      31,824
Donated legal services -                  -              -              60,000 60,000        -                     
Office and technical supplies -                  -              -              -             -              57,250
Telephone 4,794              1,048          5,842          1,064         6,906          8,579
Website and internet fees -                  -              -              -             -              6,300
Student incentive 14,000            3,060          17,060        3,107         20,167        15,645
Postage and shipping 2,532              553             3,085          562            3,647          4,818
Miscellaneous 70,575            15,373        85,948        11,242       97,190        114,844
Depreciation and amortization 19,874            4,344          24,218        4,411         28,629        77,530               

Total 5,053,988$     1,103,287$ 6,157,275$ 1,129,475$ 7,286,750$ 6,989,856$        

2014

BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOLBEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,

- 15 -



FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

156 WEST 56
TH

STREET

NEW YORK, NEW YORK  10019
_________

TEL:  (212) 957-3600
FAX:  (212) 957-3696

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Beginning with 
Children Charter School (the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 
2014, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 28, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item 2014-01 that we consider to be a 
significant deficiency.
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TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and responses as item 2014-01.

We noted certain matter that was reported to the management of the School in a separate letter dated 
October 28, 2014.

The School’s Reponses to Findings

The School’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs. The School’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

New York, New York
October 28, 2014
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BEGINNING WITH CHILDREN CHARTER SCHOOL 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 
   
2014-01 Monitoring Government Cost-Reimbursement Grants 
 
Criteria 
 
Costs must be adequately documented for a cost-reimbursement claim to be valid. 
 
Cause and Effect 
 
This condition can be attributed to accounting personnel’s lack of oversight over grant management 
activities, which could result in potential disallowance of expenses claimed on federal grants.  
 
Condition 
 
We noted the following matters pursuant to the School’s grant management practices: 
 

 The School’s general ledger has not been fully implemented to include coding to record grant or 
contract costs and expenditures. As an alternative the School maintains a manual worksheet 
showing an itemization of expenditures charged to cost-reimbursement government grants. The 
itemized worksheet does not contain dates for expenditures.   

 The School could not provide us with grant management worksheets for the ARRA – Race to the 
Top revenue recognized in the amount of $24,944.   

 
 Recommendation 

 
To insure that the School is in compliance with specific grant requirements and with government laws and 
regulations, we recommend structuring the accounting software to incorporate cost centers in its general 
ledger where grant expenditures are tracked, summarized, and reviewed for grant compliance.  We also 
recommend a formal monthly meeting between the development and accounting departments to verify 
that grant reports are reliable, current, accurate, and supported by documentation.   
 
Management’s Response 
 
We concur with the finding.  Up until June 30, 2014, the Beginning with Children Foundation was the 
charter management organization for the School and provided its back office services including 
accounting. As of July 1, 2014 the School is no longer in any contractual relationship with Foundation 
and, through a RFP proposal, chose a third party back office provider to do all aspects of its accounting. 
The finding has been reviewed with management and staff.  Corrective action has been taken and the 
process is in place to use the class function in the accounting system to track grant expenditures 
accordingly. The board and the school's new accounting service provider will also hold a formal monthly 
meeting to verify grant reports are reliable, current, accurate, and supported by documentation. 
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 Assumptions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable

REGULAR 
EDUCATION

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL

Total Revenue 6,025,390             569,650                -                           -                           -                            6,595,040             
Total Expenses 5,469,868             718,465                -                           -                           617,420                  6,805,753             

Net Income 555,522                (148,815)               -                           -                           (617,420)                 (210,713)               
Actual Student Enrollment 391                       29                         -                           

Total Paid Student Enrollment -                           -                           -                           

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION  OTHER  FUNDRAISING 

 MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL  TOTAL 

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate

New York City $13,777.00                5,786,340                               -                               -                               -                               -                5,786,340 

School District 2 (Enter Name)                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

School District 3 (Enter Name)                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

School District 4 (Enter Name)                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

School District 5 (Enter Name)                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

               5,786,340                               -                               -                               -                               -                5,786,340 

Special Education Revenue                               -                   569,650                               -                               -                               -                   569,650 

Grants

Stimulus                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Other                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Other State Revenue                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES                5,786,340                   569,650                               -                               -                               -                6,355,990 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Title I                   159,000                               -                               -                               -                               -                   159,000 

Title Funding - Other                     60,000                               -                               -                               -                               -                     60,000 

School Food Service (Free Lunch)                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Other                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Other Federal Revenue                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES                   219,000                               -                               -                               -                               -                   219,000 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Erate Reimbursement                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments,                     20,050                               -                               -                               -                               -                     20,050 

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.)                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Food Service (Income from meals)                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Text Book                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Other Local Revenue                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES                     20,050                               -                               -                               -                               -                     20,050 

TOTAL REVENUE                6,025,390                   569,650                               -                               -                               -                6,595,040 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent)
EXPENSES
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management -                                                      -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Instructional Management 4.00                                     407,503                     18,315                               -                               -                     32,051                   457,869 
Deans, Directors & Coordinators -                                                      -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
CFO / Director of Finance -                                                      -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Operation / Business Manager -                                                      -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Administrative Staff 3.00                                                 -                               -                               -                               -                   138,391                   138,391 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF                         7                   407,503                     18,315                               -                               -                   170,442                   596,260 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular 27.00                                1,868,952                               -                               -                               -                               -                1,868,952 
Teachers - SPED 6.00                                                 -                   385,957                               -                               -                               -                   385,957 
Substitute Teachers -                                            68,522                       6,478                               -                               -                               -                     75,000 
Teaching Assistants 8.00                                     281,159                               -                               -                               -                               -                   281,159 
Specialty Teachers -                                                      -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Aides 6.00                                     260,688                     11,716                               -                               -                     20,504                   292,908 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES

Beginning with Children Charter School
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2014-2015

July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 147. This will populate the data in row 9.



 Assumptions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable

REGULAR 
EDUCATION

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL

Total Revenue 6,025,390             569,650                -                           -                           -                            6,595,040             
Total Expenses 5,469,868             718,465                -                           -                           617,420                  6,805,753             

Net Income 555,522                (148,815)               -                           -                           (617,420)                 (210,713)               
Actual Student Enrollment 391                       29                         -                           

Total Paid Student Enrollment -                           -                           -                           

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION  OTHER  FUNDRAISING 

 MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL  TOTAL 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES

Beginning with Children Charter School
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2014-2015

July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 147. This will populate the data in row 9.

Therapists & Counselors 7.00                                     249,699                     23,607                               -                               -                               -                   273,306 
Other -                                          159,884                     15,116                               -                               -                               -                   175,000 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL                       54                2,888,904                   442,874                               -                               -                     20,504                3,352,282 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse -                                                      -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Librarian -                                                      -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Custodian -                                                      -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Security -                                                      -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Other -                                                      -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL                          -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                       61                3,296,408                   461,189                               -                               -                   190,945                3,948,542 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes                   296,677                     41,507                               -                               -                     17,185                   355,369 

Fringe / Employee Benefits                   689,010                     96,397                               -                               -                     39,911                   825,318 
Retirement / Pension                   476,506                     66,666                               -                               -                     27,602                   570,774 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS                1,462,193                   204,570                               -                               -                     84,698                1,751,461 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS                4,758,600                   665,759                               -                               -                   275,643                5,700,003 

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit                               -                               -                               -                               -                   177,000                   177,000 
Legal                               -                               -                               -                               -                   100,000                   100,000 
Management Company Fee                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Nurse Services                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Food Service / School Lunch                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Payroll Services                     10,235                          460                               -                               -                          805                     11,500 
Special Ed Services                               -                       5,500                               -                               -                               -                       5,500 
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting                     22,695                       1,020                               -                               -                       1,785                     25,500 
TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES                     32,930                       6,980                               -                               -                   279,590                   319,500 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses                               -                               -                               -                               -                     20,000                     20,000 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials                     73,090                       6,910                               -                               -                               -                     80,000 
Special Ed Supplies & Materials                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Textbooks / Workbooks                     16,445                       1,555                               -                               -                               -                     18,000 

Supplies & Materials other                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Equipment / Furniture                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Telephone                       5,785                          260                               -                               -                          455                       6,500 

Technology                     18,690                          840                               -                               -                       1,470                     21,000 
Student Testing & Assessment                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Field Trips                     14,161                       1,339                               -                               -                               -                     15,500 
Transportation (student)                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Student Services - other                   193,962                     18,338                               -                               -                               -                   212,300 

Office Expense                     55,803                       2,508                               -                               -                       4,389                     62,700 

Staff Development                   224,503                     10,090                               -                               -                     17,658                   252,250 
Staff Recruitment                     10,680                          480                               -                               -                          840                     12,000 
Student Recruitment / Marketing                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
School Meals / Lunch                       9,593                          907                               -                               -                               -                     10,500 
Travel (Staff)                     10,680                          480                               -                               -                          840                     12,000 
Fundraising                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Other                       4,895                          220                               -                               -                          385                       5,500 
TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS                   638,287                     43,926                               -                               -                     46,037                   728,250 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance                     40,050                       1,800                               -                               -                       3,150                     45,000 



 Assumptions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable

REGULAR 
EDUCATION

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL

Total Revenue 6,025,390             569,650                -                           -                           -                            6,595,040             
Total Expenses 5,469,868             718,465                -                           -                           617,420                  6,805,753             

Net Income 555,522                (148,815)               -                           -                           (617,420)                 (210,713)               
Actual Student Enrollment 391                       29                         -                           

Total Paid Student Enrollment -                           -                           -                           

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION  OTHER  FUNDRAISING 

 MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL  TOTAL 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES

Beginning with Children Charter School
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2014-2015

July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 147. This will populate the data in row 9.

Janitorial                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Building and Land Rent / Lease                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Repairs & Maintenance                               -                               -                               -                               -                     13,000                     13,000 

Equipment / Furniture                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 
Security                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

Utilities                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE                     40,050                       1,800                               -                               -                     16,150                     58,000 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               - 

TOTAL EXPENSES                5,469,868                   718,465                               -                               -                   617,420                6,805,753 

NET INCOME                   555,522                  (148,815)                               -                               -                  (617,420)                  (210,713)

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*  REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

 TOTAL 
ENROLLED 

New York City 391                         29                           420                         

School District 2 (Enter Name) -                             

School District 3 (Enter Name) -                             

School District 4 (Enter Name) -                             
School District 5 (Enter Name) -                             

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 391                         29                           420                         

REVENUE PER PUPIL 15,410                    19,643                    -                             

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 13,989                    24,775                    -                             
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Appendix E: Disclosure of Financial Interest Form
Created Friday, October 31, 2014
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An Appendix E: Disclosure of Financial Interest Form must be completed for each active
Trustee who served on the charter school's Board of Trustees during the 2013-14 school
year. Trustees are at times difficult to track down in the summer months. Trustees may complete
and submit at their leisure (but before the deadline) their individual form at:

http://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-trustee-disclosure-form/. Trustees may
download and/or email their forms to you upon completion.

Trustees who are technologically advanced may complete the survey using their smartphones or
other mobile devices by downloading the this bar code link to the
surveyhttps://fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/540612/publish/qrcode/. (Make sure you have
the bar code application reader on your phone).

If a Trustee is unable to complete the form by the deadline (i.e, out of the country), the school is
responsible for submitting the information required on the form for that individual trustee.  

Just send the links via email today to your Trustees requesting that they each complete their
form as soon as possible.
Thank you.

Yes, each member of the school's Board of Trustees has received a link to the Disclosure of
Financial Interest Form.

Yes

Thank you.

http://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-trustee-disclosure-form/
https://fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/540612/publish/qrcode/
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1. Current Board Member Information
Full Name of
Individual
Trustees

Position on
Board
(Officer or
Rep).

Voting
Member

Area of Expertise
&/or Additional
Role

Terms Served & Length
(include date of election
and expiration)

Committee affiliations

1 Amanda
Haught

Chair/Preside
nt

Yes Special
Education

Serving 1st term as of
November 7, 2014

Legal
Finance
Audit
Committee on academic
excellence

2 Patrick Kern Chair/Preside
nt

Yes Charter
Management

Serving 1st term as of
November 7, 2014

Legal
Finance
Audit
Committee on academic
excellence

3 Joseph Bruno Treasurer Yes Finance Serving 1st term as of
November 7, 2014

Legal
Finance
Audit
Committee on academic
excellence

4 Jeffery Unger Member Yes Real Estate Serving 1st term as of
November 7, 2014

Legal
Finance
Audit
Committee on academic
excellence

5 Jackie
Bennett

Member Education,
School
Management,
and Union

Waiting for approval
from the for DOE 

Legal
Finance
Audit
Committee on academic
excellence

2. Total Number of Members Joining Board during the 2013-14 school year

4

3. Total Number of Members Departing the Board during the 2013-14 school year

4

4. According to the School's by-laws, what is the maximum number of trustees that may
comprise the governing board?
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15

5. How many times did the Board meet during the 2013-14 school year?

12

6. How many times will the Board meet during the 2014-15 school year?

12

Thank you.



Appendix H:  Enrollment and Retention Efforts 

The recruitment efforts for 2013-2014 school year consisted of visited to neighborhood 
churches, preschool and businesses.  The Parent Coordinator, who is bi-lingual, attended 
various community events such as SchoolFest. SchoolFest is an event that target reaching 
parents and students seeking educational resources and services.  The Parent Coordinator 
and Operations Manager planned visits to Day Cares and Preschool.  

The school partnered with the day care center that has a Pre- K program housed in the 
same building as the school. 

The school created posters and flyers that were in Spanish and English displayed 
throughout the community by School Aides, Parent Coordinator and Operations 
Manager. The Parent Coordinator canvassed in South Williamsburg on the corners of 
Broadway/Union and Lorimer/Broadway personally recruited families, handing out 
applications and flyers.  In addition, the Office Manager and School Aides circulated 
flyers in local restaurants, dry cleaners grocery stores and apartment complexes. 

For the 2014-2015-school year, our recruitment mimics the recruitment efforts from the 
previous school year.  The Dire Operations Manager, Parent Coordinator and School 
visited the local pre-schools and UPK programs in the neighborhood on one to two 
occasions each.  In addition the school held ten information sessions during the day, in 
the evening and on Saturdays. 

Vanguard Direct was retained again to conduct a mass mailing in the 11206, 11211, and 
11249 zip codes.  Approximately 2,000 families received mailers containing a stamped, 
return envelope along with flyers and applications.  Instructions were also provided on 
how to apply on online.  These mailings were also in Spanish and English. 

The Operations Manager, Parent Coordinator and School Aides circulated flyers in local 
restaurants, grocery stores and apartment complexes.  Letters were mailed to family who 
were on the previous year waiting list and encourage them to reapply for the new school 
year. They also visited several neighborhood churches with large populations of Spanish 
speaking families. The parent coordinated visited a parochial school that was closing and 
gave out applications. 
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Required Form: 2013-14 Appendix E - Disclosure of Financial Interest
Form
Created Thursday, July 31, 2014

https://fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/540612/responses/export//surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-trustee-disclosure-form/dfa17591761507283516a37e89070668f6e15b83/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. Trustee Name:

Jeffrey Unger

2. Charter School Name:

Beginning with Children Charter School

3. Charter Authorizer:

NYC Department of Education

4. *Your Home Address:
4. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

4. *Your Home Address: | City/State

4. *Your Home Address: | Zip

5. *Your Business Address
5. *Your Business Address | Street Address

5. *Your Business Address | City/State

5. *Your Business Address | Zip

6. *Daytime Phone Number:

7. *E-mail Address:

8. Select all positions you held on Board:

(check all that apply)
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•  Other, please specify...: Member

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No
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Page 2

13. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

14. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 
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Required Form: 2013-14 Appendix E - Disclosure of Financial Interest
Form
Created Thursday, July 31, 2014

https://fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/540612/responses/export//surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-trustee-disclosure-form/704997a5cce9fabf76180bc5f14b6a699370d9c4/
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Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. Trustee Name:

S Joseph Bruno

2. Charter School Name:

Beginning with Children Charter School

3. Charter Authorizer:

NYC Department of Education

4. *Your Home Address:
4. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

4. *Your Home Address: | City/State

4. *Your Home Address: | Zip

5. *Your Business Address
5. *Your Business Address | Street Address

5. *Your Business Address | City/State

5. *Your Business Address | Zip

6. *Daytime Phone Number:

7. *E-mail Address:

8. Select all positions you held on Board:

(check all that apply)
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•  Treasurer

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No
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Page 2

13. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

14. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 
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Required Form: 2013-14 Appendix E - Disclosure of Financial Interest
Form
Created Thursday, July 31, 2014
Updated Friday, May 01, 2015
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Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. Trustee Name:

Patrick S. Kern 

2. Charter School Name:

Beginning with Children Charter School

3. Charter Authorizer:

NYC Department of Education

4. *Your Home Address:
4. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

4. *Your Home Address: | City/State

4. *Your Home Address: | Zip

5. *Your Business Address
5. *Your Business Address | Street Address

5. *Your Business Address | City/State

5. *Your Business Address | Zip

6. *Daytime Phone Number:

7. *E-mail Address:

8. Select all positions you held on Board:

(check all that apply)



Page 2

•  Chair/President
•  Other, please specify...: Co-Chair

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

13. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

14. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 



Page 1

Required Form: 2013-14 Appendix E - Disclosure of Financial Interest
Form
Created Thursday, July 31, 2014

https://fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/540612/responses/export//surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-trustee-disclosure-form/ab31726e1dd56650c2d2bb4c04f5926ec2719c6f/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. Trustee Name:

Amanda Haught

2. Charter School Name:

Beginning with Children Charter School

3. Charter Authorizer:

NYC Department of Education

4. *Your Home Address:
4. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

4. *Your Home Address: | City/State

4. *Your Home Address: | Zip

5. *Your Business Address
5. *Your Business Address | Street Address

5. *Your Business Address | City/State

5. *Your Business Address | Zip

6. *Daytime Phone Number:

7. *E-mail Address:

8. Select all positions you held on Board:

(check all that apply)



Page 2

•  Chair/President

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

13. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

14. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 



Page 1

Required Form: 2013-14 Appendix E - Disclosure of Financial Interest
Form
Created Thursday, July 31, 2014

https://fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/540612/responses/export//surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-trustee-disclosure-form/27013946c56a64a139bea9a3f3bd0e98dd3e106e/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. Trustee Name:

Alexander Fong

2. Charter School Name:

Beginning with Children Charter School

3. Charter Authorizer:

NYC Department of Education

4. *Your Home Address:
4. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

4. *Your Home Address: | City/State

4. *Your Home Address: | Zip

5. *Your Business Address
5. *Your Business Address | Street Address

5. *Your Business Address | City/State

5. *Your Business Address | Zip

6. *Daytime Phone Number:

7. *E-mail Address:

8. Select all positions you held on Board:

(check all that apply)



Page 2

•  Chair/President
•  Other, please specify...: Member

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

13. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

14. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 



Page 1

Required Form: 2013-14 Appendix E - Disclosure of Financial Interest
Form
Created Friday, August 01, 2014

https://fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/540612/responses/export//surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-trustee-disclosure-form/0274dbab40d5ae682e11c208d437f77af5bfe345/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. Trustee Name:

JB Lockhart

2. Charter School Name:

Beginning with Children Charter School

3. Charter Authorizer:

NYC Department of Education

4. *Your Home Address:
4. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

4. *Your Home Address: | City/State

4. *Your Home Address: | Zip

5. *Your Business Address
5. *Your Business Address | Street Address

5. *Your Business Address | City/State

5. *Your Business Address | Zip

6. *Daytime Phone Number:

7. *E-mail Address:

8. Select all positions you held on Board:

(check all that apply)



Page 2

•  Treasurer

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

13. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

14. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 



Page 1

Required Form: 2013-14 Appendix E - Disclosure of Financial Interest
Form
Created Friday, August 01, 2014

https://fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/540612/responses/export//surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-trustee-disclosure-form/8098ba810632e536562953798863f7a65544aeff/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. Trustee Name:

Antonia Bryson

2. Charter School Name:

Beginning with Children Charter School

3. Charter Authorizer:

NYC Department of Education

4. *Your Home Address:
4. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

4. *Your Home Address: | City/State

4. *Your Home Address: | Zip

5. *Your Business Address
5. *Your Business Address | Street Address

5. *Your Business Address | City/State

5. *Your Business Address | Zip

6. *Daytime Phone Number:

7. *E-mail Address:

8. Select all positions you held on Board:

(check all that apply)



Page 2

•  Chair/President
•  Vice Chair/Vice President

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

(No response)

10a. If YES, please provide a description of the position you hold and your responsibilities, your
salary and your start date in the next 

[cmoeY.0] 10a. If YES, please provide a description of the position you hold and your responsibilities,
your salary and your start date in the next | Position Held

(No response)

[cmoeY.1] 10a. If YES, please provide a description of the position you hold and your responsibilities,
your salary and your start date in the next | Responsibilities

(No response)

[cmoeY.2] 10a. If YES, please provide a description of the position you hold and your responsibilities,
your salary and your start date in the next | Salary

(No response)

[cmoeY.3] 10a. If YES, please provide a description of the position you hold and your responsibilities,
your salary and your start date in the next | Start Date

(No response)



Page 3

Page 2

13. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

14. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 
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